
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
THIRTY -SECOND SESSION 

Official Records * 

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 45th MEETING 

Chairman: Mr. GAVIRIA (Colombia) 

CONTENTS 

SIXTH COMMITTEE 
45th meeting 

held on 
Monday, 14 November 1977 

at 10.30 a.m. 
New York 

AGENDA ITEM 112: REPORT OF THE INTERNATIONAL LAW COMMISSION ON THE WORK OF ITS 
TWENTY-NINTH SESSION (continued) 

• This record is subject to correction . Corrections should be incorporated in a copy of 
the record and should be sent within one week of the date of publication to the Chief, 
Official Records Editing Section, room A-3550. 

Corrections will be issued shortly after the end of the session, in a separate fascicle for 
each Committee. 

77-58081 

Distr. GENERAL 
A/C.6/32/SR.45 
17 November 1977 
ENGLISH 
ORIGINAL: FRENCH 

/ ... 



A/C.6/32/SR.45 
English 
Page 2 

The meeting was called to order at 11.10 a.m. 

AGENDA ITEM 112: REPORT OF TilE INTERNATIONAL LAVJ COMMISSION ON THE vJORK OF ITS 
'IWENTY-IJINTH SESSION (continued) (A/32/10 and A/32/183) 

l. .!Vlr. QADEERUDDIN AHMED (Pakistan) said that as his country was not a memcer of 
the International Law Commission, he felt bound to refer to the late stage at which 
his delegation had been able to review the work of the twenty-ninth session of 
the ILC. His delegation would 9 however, follow the suggestion made by 
Sir Francis Vallat in his statement at the thirty-first meeting to the effect that 
it would be more helpful, as matters stood, to express views on principles rather 
than on matters of detail. 

2. On the subject of the ILC's methods of work, his delegation, while recogn~z~ng 
that the Commission had done detailed research on theory, decisions of tribunals, 
practices of States, and fully and partly accepted international practices, 
found it striking that the Commission not only presented its drafts in bits and 
pieces but did not always disclose in advance the scheme adopted by it for the 
study of various topics. That was not helpful to those who were expected to 
scrutinize the draft articles. 

3. Moreover, the Commission itself often seemed not to be quite clear in its 
own mind as to what the whole architectural plan of its drafts was going to be. 
For example, it had so far avoided a decision on whether the draft articles on 
State responsibility were to begin :with an article giving definitions or an 
article enumerating the matters excluded from the scope of the draft. The reasons 
given by the Commission in paragraph 24 of its report (A/32/10) could not be 
that the draft articles were only tentative, since the same might apply to the 
definitions and the preliminary clauses. As the Commission had said in paragraph 52 
of the report, with reference to its draft articles on the succession of States 
in respect of matters other than treaties, the form to be given to the codification 
11 cannot be determined until the study of the subject has been completed"; it 
therefore appeared that the Commission had not yet studied, even tentatively, 
the whole of the subject of one of its series of draft articles. It was surely 
desirable that the Commission should first survey a topic in its entirety and 
tentatively prepare a structure of codification before beginning its detailed work. 
That method would increase the speed of work and enable those who were called upon 
to give their views on draft articles to bear in mind the final end of the work. 

4. On the subject of the form of the report under consideration, his delegation 
believed that the Commission should try to set out in a few sentences the positive 
ideas it was seeking to embody in each article. That purpose was not served by 
the learned commentaries in the report which, while they justified the language 
of a proposed article, sometimes lost sight of the original intention. Moreover, 
in order to make the interpretation of individual articles easier, the authors 
of the report might sometimes have found it useful to replace long explanations 
by a few specific examples, as in the case of the distinction between obligations 

I . .. 



A/C.6/32/SR.45 
English 
Page 3 

(Mr. Qadeeruddin Ahmed, Pakistan) 

11of conduct'1 and "of result". In his delegation's view, that distribution was not 
so subtle as to require the matter to be referred, in the event of difficulties of 
interpretation, to international tribunals. 

5. On the subject of succession of States in respect of matters other than 
treaties, his delegation believed that division of State property was an important 
aspect of succession to State property and should be codified comprehensively in 
a separate section of the draft articles. 

6. His delegation believed that the principle s governing t he subj ect of State 
responsibility needed to be codified in the clearest terms so as to remove all 
~biguity about the circumstances which rendered States responsible for the 
violation of an international obligation. That was of special importance for 
[eveloping countries because of the absence of efficient administrative . 
infrastructure. The imputability of State responsibility should be precisely 
[efined and illustrated, with objective formulas being found to safeguard the 
interest of the State which suffered loss and the interest of the State against 
which claim was preferred. In that connexion, the action of an enemy of the State, 
as in the case of political or external insurrection, should not be allowed to 
become a cause of action. 

7. The law of the non-navigational uses of international watercourses was of 
the utmost importance to his country because it was a lower riparian country and 
its resources were heavily dependent on the use of such watercourses. His 
[elegation accordingly submitted the following principles for consideration by the 
Commission with a view to improving friendly relations among States: (i) the waters 
of an international river should be equitably apportioned among the riparian States, 
having due regard to the heavy dependence of particular riparian States on water 
and traditional uses of such water; (ii) exercise of rights by a riparian Sta~e 
mthin its territory should not result in reducing the normal flow of water or in 
ecological changes liable to cause damage in the territory of another riparian State; 
(iii) each riparian State should exercise the utmost care within its territory to 
prevent the pollution of water; (iv) where the utilization of water by a riparian 
State was likely to cause damage to another riparian State, prior agreement of 
the latter State should be required; (v) any right of a riparian State that could 
be exercised in more than one way should be exercised in such a way as not to 
cause damage to another riparian State; (vi) an aggrieved riparian State should be 
adequately compensated for any loss suffered by reason of the violation of its 
rights by the other riparian State; (vii) riparian States should be under legal 
obligation to settle their disputes peacefully. If a friendly settlement could 
not be reached, they should be required to approach international forums available 
for that purpose. 

8, In conclusion, his delegation emphasized that all the draft articles prepared 
by the Commission should ultimately be based on principles of justice and equity 

I . .. 



A/C.6/32/SR.45 
English 
Page 4 

(Mr. Qadeeruddin Ahmed, Pakistan) 

and not merely on practice and precedent~ since there was no permanent point of 
reference for developing international law other than justice and equity. However, 
the distinction between primary and secondary sources of obligations could not 
be maintained if progressive development and codification of international lavr 
were to go hand in hand. 

9. Mr. BAVAND (Iran) said, with regard to the draft articles on State 
responsibility, that the provisions of article 19, concerning the distinction 
between two separate categories of internationally wrongful acts, inevitably 
inspired the substance of the following articles - articles 20, 21 and 22. For 
instance, the express reference made by the Commission to some of the most 
characteristic violations of international obligations of essential importance 
for safeguarding the human being, such as those concerning genocide and apartheid, 
had a special bearing on the possible extension of the rule of exhaustion of local 
remedies to all private individuals, including nationals of the State directly 
involved. 

10. Under article 20, the adoption by an administrative or judicial authority of 
a State of conduct different from that specifically required by the international 
obligation might be deemed to be an immediate breach of that obligation. According 
to article 21~ the State's choice of the means to be employed could in no way 
constitute a breach of the obligation. There was no breach unless the State had. 
failed to achieve the required result by the means available to it. Under 
paragraph 2 of that article, the State might not only achieve the required result 
by subsequent conduct but also c.chieve an "equivalent result 11

• The latter 
expression, by its flexibility~ 1vould facilitate international relations, but at 
the same time it opened the door to various interpretations of the meaning and 
scope of the concept of required result and, moreover, allowed the State to claim 
the realization of one aspect of the required result rather than the other. 
The State might claim, for example, that the realization of a certain degree of 
economic and social development was tantamount to the realization of the 
objectives of human rights and for that reason reject any accusation of a serious 
breach of an international obligation of essential importance for safeguarding 
human rights. 

11. Article 22, which was a logical consequence of the articles preceding it, 
stated the principle of the exhaustion of local remedies, thus laying down an 
additional condition of the violation of obligations "of result" for a special 
category of obligations, those designed to protect alien individuals and their 
property. It was in the light of that obligation that it would be possible to 
determine whether a State had breached its obligation. It should be noted that 
a large proportion of international obligations concerning the treatment to be 
accorded to private individuals allowed the State to achieve by stages the 
result required of it or to achieve it by subsequent conduct. 

I 
I • • • 



A/C.6/32/SR.45 
English 
Page 5 

(Mr. Bavand, Iran) 

12. His delegation believed that during the second reading of the articles under 
consideration~ particularly article 22, some thought should be given to extending 
the application of the principle of exhaustion of local remedies to the treatment 
accorded by the State to its ovm nationals. The international community was 
gradually assuming responsibility for the protection of certain fundamental rights
and most of the existing conventions on the subject, such as the International 
Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of Racial Discrimination, the 
International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights and the Optional Protocol 
thereto, expressly imposed the re~uirement of exhaustion of local remedies. 

13. Hith regard to chapter III on the succession of States in matters other than 
treaties, his delegation -vras gratified by the fact that parallelism had been 
naintained between the provisions concerning the passing of State debts and the 
passing of State property. The most important point in the commentaries on 
articles 17 and 18 was the distinction they made betw·een State debts and debts of 
local authorities. In cases in vrhich the latter had not been the responsibility of 
the predecessor State, logic and justice re~uired that the successor State should 
not be responsible for them. However, there was no legal ground for the distinction 
that some had sought to make in recent years between State debts and regime debts. 
In conclusion, his delegation agreed w·ith the Commission 1 s proposal to postpone its 
consideration of the question of "odious debts". 

14. Still referring to the definition of State debt~ he said his delegation 
favoured including the word "international11 in article 18, which should cover only 
financial obligations chargeable to a State vis-a-vis another State, an 
international organization or another subject of international law. Financial 
relations between States and private individuals~ vrhether natural or juridical 
persons, including private international orgar.izations, >¥ere ade~uately covered by 
article 20. Furthermore~ that kind of debt should be governed solely by the 
internal lav of States. 

15. Article 20, paragraph 1, reaffirmed the basic principle already enunciated in 
part I of the draft, namely that the succession of States did not as such affect 
the rights and obligations of creditors. The purpose of that provision vas to 
stipulate that the debt-claims of a third State must not cease to exist or suffer 
as a result of territorial change. According to paragraph 2, the predecessor State 
vas not automatically freed of responsibility vith regard to its debt to a third 
State unless the latter so consented. Another important element in that paragraph 
~>ras the fact that it referred also to international organizations and other subjects 
of international law, as indicated in paragraph (12) of the commentary. 

16. Part II~ section 2, of the draft, which contained articles dealing 1vith every 
type of succession of States, follmred the same methodological approach as part I. 
Article 21, paragraph l, dealing vlith the transfer of part of the territory of a 
State, provided that the passing of the State debt was to be settled by agreement 
between the predecessor and successor States. Paragraph 2 posed a delicate problem 
by invoking the concept of equity, which was not in itself a legal princ :ple. 'I'he 
problems raised by so vague a concept -vrere further complicated by the fact that in 

I . .. 



A/C. 6/32/SR. 45.., 
English 
Page 6 

(Mr . Bavand, Iran) 

order to determine what constituted "an equitable proportion", it was necessary to 
take into account the property, rights and interests w·hich passed to the successor 
State in relation to the State debt. His delegation considered that the Commission 
should take a closer look at those problems. 

17. Mr . OMAN (Somalia) observed that articles 20 and 21 on State responsibility 
drew a distinction bet"l·reen the breach of an international obligation "of means" and 
a breach of an obligation "of result" which, although of fundamental significance, 
was nevertheless unsatisfactory from the standpoint of both form and substance. As 
the Commission itself acknowledged in paragraph (3) of the commentary on article 20, 
the adoption of such a distinction was likely to cause some uncertainty, for it was 
not always easy to draw a demarcation line between obligations "of conduct 11 or "of 
means" and those "of resultn. Nevertheless, it seemed that there had been general 
agreement in the Commission that the distinction should be maintained because of 
its "normative and practical importance" for the codification of the general rules 
covering international responsibility. However, what might at first sight seem to 
be an obligation of result might on other occasions prove to be an obligation of 
conduct. The Commission should therefore undertake an in-depth review of those 
provisions in the light of the comments made in the debate in the Sixth Committee. 

18. Although article 22, on the exhaustion of local remedies, embodied a rule which 
was essentially a matter of substance, its application lD'\.ewise entailed procedural 
problems. His delegation considered that the concept of the exhaustion of local 
remedies should net exceed the confines of international law or go beyond the limits 
of the purpose of the draft articles, namely the codification of the general rules 
governing the international responsibility of States for internationally wrongful 
acts. His deleeation supported the view expressed in paragraph (60) of the 
commentary on article 22, to the effect that the text adopted should be confined to 
a general statement on the principle as provided for by international law, which 
should be flexible enough to be able to be adapted to the various situations that 
arose in practice, as was shown by the criteria of "effectiveness" and genuine 
navailability" of the remedies open to private individuals which appeared in the 
text of the article itself. In that connexion, he recalled that the Commission had 
already spent several years preparing the articles on State responsibility and 
expressed regret that it would not be able to complete that draft for several years 
more. It would ultimately talce the Commission more than 10 years to complete that 
assignment, a time-span 1-.rhich his delegation found excessive. 

19. With regard to succession to State debts , it should be noted that article 17 
limited the scope of part II of the draft. The definition of State debt had 
presented major difficulties. There had been a divergence of views on the issue of 
vhether that concept should be limited to the debts owed to third States and 
international entities or whether it should cover debts owed to natural and 
juridical persons. The same problem had arisen in connexion with article 20, 
dealing with the effects of the passing of State debts with regard to creditors. 
His delegation considered that the >wrd "international" in article 18 should be 
retained, for otherwise the expression 11financial obligations" could be cons~rued 
ns meaning any obligation assumed vis-a-vis natural or juridical persons, wh1ch 

; ... 



A/C. 6/32/SR. 45 
English 
Page 7 

(Mr. Oman, Somalia) 

would constitute a flagrant interference in the internal affairs of States. In so 
far as international law was essentially concerned w·ith international relations~ it 
was essential to make it clear that the financial obligation should arise at the 
international level. 

20. His delegation welcomed the ~rov1s1ons of article 22~ which were in effect 
based on the clean slate ~rinciple, and considered that special attention should be 
paid to the ~rinciple of the permanent sovereignty of a new·ly independent State 
over its natural resources. 

21. With regard to the draft articles on treaties concluded between States and 
international organizations or between two or more international organizations, he 
observed that the Commission had follovred the pattern of the Vienna Convention on 
the Law of Treaties. The major difficulty which had arisen in that connexion was 
whether international organizations which were parties to treaties could be placed 
on the same footing as sovereign States in that regard. It should be noted that 
according to paragraph (l) of the commentary on article 19, the draft articles 
laid down ;'different rules on the formulation of reservations by international 
organizations according to whether the reservations are to treaties between 
international organizations or to treaties between States and one or more 
international organizationsn. His delegation, vrhich was seriously considering the 
~uestion, would submit its corrments at a later stage. 

22. Turning to chapter V of the report, he welcomed the fact that in the near 
future the Commission planned to complete the second reading of the draft 
articles on the most-favoured-nation clause and expected to receive the first report 
on the non-navigational uses of international watercourses. He was also pleased to 
note that two equally important questions~ the status of the diplomatic courier and 
the second part of the topic 11 Relations between States and international 
organizations", -vrere currently being studied by a Horldng Group. 

23. \<lith regard to the Commission 1 s programme and methods of 1-rork, the practice of 
establishing a Planning Group at each session should facilitate the -vrork. The 
Commission had adopted a long-term programme of work 1-rhich was perhaps too ambitious. 
In another connexion, 1-rhile the order of priority of the work to be undertaken could 
be laid dmm by General Assembly resolutions , it was also desirable that the 
Commission itself should take ap~ropriate initiatives to speed up the work on 
certain topics, in particular by requesting special rapporteurs to prepare 
preliminary studies. The Commission had sometimes been criticized for dissipating 
its efforts and it was, for example, desirable that it should complete in final 
form chapters I, II and III of the draft articles on international responsibility 
before taking up other issues in that field. 

I . .. 



A/C.6i32/SR.45 
Ene;lish 
Page 8 

(Mr. Oman, Somalia) 

24. Every year there were complaints that the Commission's report~ which was very 
voluminous and detailed, had been submitted to Governments too close to the time 
when it was to be considered by the Sixth Committee. It had been suggested in that 
regard that the report should be reduced in size and submitted in instalments. An 
increase in the staff of the Codification Division would certainly help to improve 
the situation. 

25. On the whole~ the Commission deserved praise and admiration for the way in 
uhich it performed its functions. But since the Commission 1ms an international 
institution its work should be evaluated realistically. It 1vas an old organ vhich 
tended to concern itself -vri th the codification rather than the progressive 
development of international lav, and it was influenced primarily by the 
philosophies and doctrines of classical international law. The conservatism of its 
solutions resulted not only from its composition? >·rhich 1vas not based on the 
principle of equitable geographical representation, but also from the fact that it 
had always sought, at least until its most recent session, to apply the consensus 
principle. Unanimity was of course desirable but if the Corr~ission could not sutmit 
a unified text it should submit more than one text among which the Sixth Committee 
could choose and which would reflect the division between those who >rished to 
maintain the status quo and those who -vrished to establish a nev just and equitable 
legal order. 

26. Mr. KRISHNADASAN (Sivaziland) observed that the Commission had devoted a very 
large part of its session to the formulation of draft articles 20 to 22 on State 
responsibility. 

27. In articles 20 and 21 it had drawn a distinction betvTeen obligations of 
conduct and obligations of result \vhich in his vie1v was of fundamental importance 
for determining how a breach had been committed in each specific case. 
Unfortunately that distinction \vas extremely difficult to make in practice and he 
cited several examples of obligations which could be considered either as 
obligations of conduct or obligations of result, depending on one's point of viev. 
It might therefore be wondered vrhether those two articles did indeed represent a 
step fonmrd or whether they tended to confuse a situation "lvhich article 16 made 
perfectly clear. However, the Comrr1ission stated in its commentary that the 
distinction between obligations of conduct and obligations of result -vrould be of 
normative and practical importance when it came to determining the time and duration 
of the breach of an international obligation (tempus commissi delicti) , a question 
it intended to study at a later stage? and his delegation might then change its 
position. 

28. Article 22 embodied a generally accepted rule of international law and the 
Commission seemed to subscribe to the principle that it was a substantive rule  
vhich would also have procedural implications. It was perhaps not very important 
1-rhether it was a substantive or procedural rule ~ since the sole purpose of 
article 22 was to make it possible to determine whether a breach of an international 
obligation existed. Hhat was important from a practical point of viev , hm1ever, >ms 
to determine the time from vlhich the damage must be taken into consideration in 

/ ... 



 

A/C.6/32/SR.45 
En~lish 

Page 9 

(Hr. Krishnadasan, S-vmziland) 

order to calculate the amount of the reparation. In that regard, paragraph 32 of 
the commentary on article 22 seemed to indicate that, in the view of the Comr~ission, 
the obligation to make reparation originated at the time of the injury caused to 
the alien victim. The Commission stated that the breach of the international 
obligation nresults from the vhole series of successive acts of State conduct so 
that the injury suffered by the individual, l·rhich may eventually be used as a 
criterion for assessing the amount of reparation which the State in its capacity as 
dipl omatic or judicial p rotector may demand, is the injury caused to the individual 
by the aggregate of State conduct conflicting with the internationall y r equired 
result 11

• Hmrever, that vras not made clear in the rule set out in article 22. 

29. In concluding his comments on article 22, he stressed that remedies must exist 
w-hich vere effective and truly accessible, that -vras to say that they should, among 
other things, not be too onerous, and that, as the Con~ission had stated, it would 
be unacceptable to extend the nrovisions of article 22 to the treatment accorded by 
a State to its ovm nationals. 

30 . Referring to succession to State debts, he said that there vras a lack of 
parallelism between the definition of State debt (article 18) and the definition of 
State property (article 5). Perhaps the word 17predecessor 11 should be i nserted 
before the word 11State 11 at the end of those draft articles. Furthermore , his 
delegat ion -vras not yet convinced that the word 11 internationaln 9 in brackets, -vras 
necessary. Article 18 related to external debts of the predecessor State, -vrhich 
included all debts contracted by that State with other States or with alien natural 
or juridical persons. Although some might say that the rights of an alien 
individual creditor vere sufficiently protected by article 20, paragraph 1 , might 
it not be worth while confirming that protection by omitting the ·vrord 
;:international';? 

31 . For the same reason , the brackets round the 1-rords 11 o r against a third State 
\vh ich represents a creditor;;, in article 20 9 paragraph 2, should be deleted. The 
sco9e of the draft articles should be expanded , and the protection afforded to 
creditors could not be confused with an infringement of State sovereignty. That 
1ras -vrell protected by articles 20 and 21, which required an agreement , subject to 
the provisions of article 21 , parae;rauh 2. Furthermore, the retention of the word 
"international(' in article 18 '1-TOuld run counter to art icle 11 under which debts 
oved to the predecessor State 9 which unquestionably included debts mved by foreign 
debtors , should pass to the successor State. 

32. Article 20 was of extreme i mportance , and paragraphs 1 and 2 (a) presented no 
difficulty. On the other hand, paragraph 2 (b) irould seem to susgest that a 
creditor third State, or international organization, or third State which 
represented a creditor could find themselves being made subject to an agreement 
'IVhich they had not accepted and to iVhich they \vere not parties. It ,,ras necessary 
to determine ~¥hen the consequences of an agreement vere ;'in accordance vri th the 
other applicable rules of the art icles in the present Part;'. No agreement bet'l-reen 
the predecessor and successor States should have the consequence of automatic 
substitution of the latter for the former in respect of a third party; in that 
~egard, the provisions of the Vienna Convention on the Law of Treaties should be 
used as a basis. 

I ... 



ll/C.6/32/SR.45 
English 
Page 10 

(~1r. l(rishnadasan, 81.-raziland) 

33. Article 21" paragraph l" adopted the best solution, in the absence of well-· 
established international practice, by providing for the conclusion of an agreement. 
Hmrever, the introduction of the rule of equitable proportion in paragraph 2 could 
create difficulties. That provision 1ms one of those -vrhich vmuld make it necessary 
to establish effective 1nachinery for the settlement of disputes in a future 
convention. 

34. Article 22 was obviously an historic step in the progressive development of 
international laH. It related not only to States which '"ere not yet independent, 
but also to those 'irhich were ne~-rly independent and ·which might not have been able 
to solve the problems inherent in the succession of States in respect of matters 
other than treaties. As in the case of treaties, it would obviously be advantageous 
for nevrly independent States, if the draft articles became a convention, to 
implement its provisions retroactively. Article 22 1ms a blend of justice and 
realism. Paragraph 1 provided for the application of the clean slate principle, 
except vrhere an agreement provided otherwise. Since it was almost impossible for 
the States concerned to negotiate on an equal footing 1vhen acceding to independence, 
there Has a good chance that agreements concluded in such circumstances -vrould fall 
within the category of devolution agreements. 

35. According to paragraph 66 of the commentary on article 22, the purpose of 
paragraph 2 was to ensure that such agreements did not ignore the financial capacity 
of the ne<vly independent State or infringe the principle of the permanent 
sovereignty of every people over its wealth and natural resources. Perhaps that 
provision did not go far enough. It would seem preferable to delete the word 
iifundamental", As had been proposed, the best solution would be to decide that no 
State debt could pass from the predecessor State to the newly independent State, 
except where an agreement bet1v-een the two States provided otherwise. 

36. \Ji th regard to the question of treaties concluded between States and 
international organizations or between two or more international organizations, the 
Commission had stated in its report that international practice was still very 
limited in that field, and practically non·-existent vri th regard to such aspects as 
reservations. As treaties were based essentially on the equality of the contracting 
parties, and as international organizations were assimilated to States for the 
purposes of article 9, it was necessary to determine 1Vhether organizations should 
be treated like States, as far as reservations were concerned. The Commission 
rightly accorded international organizations the same rights as States in the case 
of treaties bet-vreen several international organizations (article 19). However, in 
article 19 bis, it limited the rights of organizations whose participation was 
essential to the object and purpose of a treaty. It might be advisable to 
reproduce the provisions of the Vienna Convention on the La1V of Treaties in that 
regard and to make provision for the formulation of reservations, except when such 
reservations vere incompatible iVith object and purpose of the treaty. Furthermore, 
it vas perhaps superfluous to draft a complete set of articles on the question? and 
it would be tragic if, in doing so, the Co~mission undermined the work accompl~shed 
in the Vienna Convention. 

/ ... 



A/C.6/32/SR.45 
English 
Page 11 

(!'-1r. Krishnadasan, Swaziland) 

37. The Commission 1 s programme of vorl~ was already extremely full and the 
Commission should concentrate on quality rather than speed. However, questions such 
as the status of the diplomatic courier~ the law of the non-navigational uses of 
international watercourses and possibly jurisdictional immunities of States and 
their property should continue to be considered or should be taken up in the fairly 
near future. In that connexion, it would be useful to strengthen the staff of the 
Codificiation Division. 

38. In conclusion, he thanked those countries 9 notably Kuwait, whose 
contributions had made possible the holdine; of the international lai-r seminars. 

39. Hr. FLALA (Norway) thanked the members of the Sixth Committee for their 
condolences on the death of Ambassador Hambro. 

The meeting rose at 12.55 p.m. 




